History of Springfield Baptist Church
Greenville, South Carolina
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Organized in 1867, Springfield Baptist Church is the oldest historically black Baptist Church in downtown Greenville, South Carolina.  The first Church building was constructed in 1870.  From 1867 until the building was readied in 1870, Springfield held its worship services in the white Greenville Baptist Church on West McBee Avenue. (This Church changed its name to First Baptist Church-Greenville in December 1890, and later on moved to its current location on Cleveland Street.) 

Throughout its 141-year history, Springfield has experienced both glory and temporary setbacks—including a major fire in 1972, which completely destroyed the Church building.  Nonetheless, with the hand of God pointing the way, Springfield has continuously moved forward.  Following is an in-depth accounting of our rich spiritual heritage. 
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In the mid-1800s the issue of slavery in America was in full debate—ultimately resulting in a full-fledged civil war between the northern and southern states.  Amid this state of affairs, Negroes in Greenville, South Carolina (as well as many other southern locales) did not have a Church in which to worship God.  Reaching out to them as early as July 1832, the white congregation at the Greenville Baptist Church on West McBee Avenue (hereafter referred to by its present name, First Baptist Greenville) opened its doors to Negroes, welcoming them to sit in the gallery.  First Baptist was itself a relatively “new” Church that strongly believed in freedom of religion for all people.  (First Baptist was officially organized in 1831; however it dates back to the mid-1820s.) 

At the first conference of Dr. William D. Thomas, who accepted the call as pastor of Greenville Baptist on February 15, 1863,  Dr. John A. Broadus called attention to the work of the colored members.  A committee of three white members was appointed to attend the meetings of this group until further arrangements were made.  State law at that time required that a white person be present at all religious meetings of Negroes.  After attending their meetings and worship services, the observing committee reported that the colored members displayed “a degree of zeal and earnestness in attending their public religious exercises which deserved the fostering care of the Church.”  

On April 21, 1867, in a Greenville Baptist Church meeting, the moderator, Dr. James P. Boyce, announced that the colored members had held a meeting “preparatory to organization of a new Church.”  Following is a copy of the letter submitted on their behalf.  

We the undersigned members of the Greenville Baptist Church, believing that we can be more widely useful, if organized into a separate and independent Church, request that letters of dismission be granted us for this purpose.  In making this request, we desire to keep our continued confidence in those with whom we have so long united in Church fellowship and in our affection for them.  And we request that we may continue to receive from them counsel and aid, such as they have hitherto readily given us. 

Resolved that we further request that we be permitted, until we can procure a house of our own, to use for worship the basement of this Church building on Friday night of every week, and on such Sunday afternoons as will not conflict with your own services.

The following sixty-five names appeared in the minutes.

John Williams and wife, Jenny Williams  
Dudly Tally and wife, Morning Tally

Emanuel Morris and wife, Milly Morris   
Spencer Sales and wife, Rachel Sales

M. Evans and wife, Mrs. Evans   

Gabriel Poole and wife, Anna Poole

Granville Page and wife, Harriet Page 

William Dolson and wife, Flora Dolson

Elias Johnson




George Gibbs



Richard Hammett



Moses Maxwell

Robert Glenn




Carson White



William Harris




George Wright

Jackson Hill




John Gordan



T. Turner




Edward Sims

Ronan Parker




Ellen Simpkins
Jane Myers   

A. Reese




Anna Hill




Hannah Robertson



Georgiana Harrison  

Rachel Goodlett




Rachel Alston



Patsy Whitfield




Clarise Williams


Matilda McCoy




Chancy Meak



Phillis Westfield



Anna Nesbit



Polly Harper




Clarisy Whitfield


Leigh Latsen




Elizabeth Olden 


Rosa Grant 




Pheeby Howard 


Lavinia Moultrie



Eliza Alexander


Matilda Berry




Martha David



Susan White   




Lucinda Roberts


Jane McDutty




Flora Maxwell



Sophia Slow




Harriett Williams


Jane Harris




Mary Cambell



Elizabeth Ford  




Melinda McCoy   


Ann Williams  




Jane Maxwell

Appropriate resolutions, offered by Dr. Basil Manly and C. J. Elford, were passed.  The first resolution assured the colored people of the pleasure with which their promises of continued Christian affection and confidence had been received and offered the continuance of counsel, sympathy, and assistance, together with the prayer that God would guide them in their undertaking.  The second resolution granted them use of the basement and requested that they continue to occupy seats in the gallery until they secured their building.

The few Negroes who continued affiliation with Greenville Baptist at that time, soon afterward asked for letters of dismissal, which were also granted.
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1st Pastor:  Rev. Gabriel Poole (1867 - 1872)

Rev. Gabriel Poole, whom the white First Baptist Greenville Church licensed to preach in 1847, was the first pastor of the colored congregation, who named their new church Springfield Baptist.  They held their meetings in the basement of the First Baptist Church from 1867 to 1871.  Springfield started with only four deacons.  During the administration of Rev. Poole, who was fondly known to everyone as “Father Poole,” there was a tremendous increase in membership.  

In 1871, a small wooden Church was erected on East McBee Avenue, on a lot that was given to Springfield by Mr. McBee.  Mr. Vardy McBee had previously given land on which to build churches to four religious denominations in downtown Greenville, and the McBee family extended the same benevolence to this colored congregation.  When the Church was partly finished, Springfield members moved in.  In the second year they decided to complete the building.  On June 17, 1872, they requested and were again granted use of the basement of the First Baptist Church while their Church was being plastered.  On the fourth Sunday in August, 1872, they held their first worship service in the completed Springfield Baptist Church.  

Later in 1872, Father Poole, believing that the Church needed a younger man, resigned as pastor after five years of  impressive and commendable service.

2nd PASTOR:  Rev. Fred Brown (1872)
The second pastor was Rev. Fred  Brown.  During his short administration, dissension arose, and he and a few followers left Springfield, built another Church on the northern end of Hudson Street, and dedicated it Mt. Zion.  Rev. A. R. Burke was pastor when, after many years, Mt. Zion was destroyed by fire.

Mt. Zion members then built another church a few blocks away and changed the name to Tabernacle Baptist Church.  Further divisions at Tabernacle resulted in the organization of two other churches, Macedonia and Pilgrim Rest Baptist Church. 

3RD PASTOR:  Rev. Richard Carroll (1873 – 1877)
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The congregation that remained at Springfield now needed a good undershepherd to lead them.  They called Rev. Richard Carroll as their third pastor.  He sought to uplift the spirits of the members, improve their morale, and return their focus to the mission of God and the Church.  He was a well-informed leader and a wonderful worker. He worked diligently and successfully to restore the confidence of the members and give them back the joy and positive outlook they previously had.  During his four-year pastorate, a baptismal pool was placed in the Church, the Missionary Society was organized, and a four-room parsonage was built.  Prior to this, baptisms had been held in the Reedy River.   

4TH PASTOR:  Rev. E. M. Brawley (1878 – 189l)
The fourth pastor was Rev. E. M. Brawley.  No information could be found concerning his work or the length of  time he served as pastor.  It is presumed that he was appointed shortly after Rev. Carroll’s pastorate ended and that he served until shortly before Rev. Watkins was called.
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5TH PASTOR:  Rev. Harrison Watkins (1892 – 1899)

The Rev. Harrison Watkins, a man filled with the Holy Ghost and fire, was the next pastor of Springfield.  He was an excellent preacher, and he served his people well for seven years.  Although blind in his last years, he felt that he could see the wonders of Lord.  Rev. Watkins’ wife, Mrs. Corrie Watkins, served as secretary of the Woman’s State Convention for many years.  
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6TH PASTOR:  Rev. J. C. Tobin (1900 – 1906)
The sixth pastor was the forward-looking Rev. J. C. Tobin.  The subject of his first sermon was:  “In the Name of God We Set Up Our Banner.”  He was a faithful and efficient undershepherd of Springfield for six years.  He organized the BYPU (Baptist Young People’s Union), later known as the BTU (Baptist Training Union)  with R. C. Davis as the first president and Miss M. J. Brock as the first secretary.  He also served as historian of the Baptist State Convention.

7TH PASTOR:  Rev. P. F. Malloy (1907 – 1909)

The seventh pastor was Rev. P.F. Malloy.  His keen insight into the future made him a wonderful worker with the young people.  He helped organize the Baptist State Congress of Christian Education and served as Vice-President.

8TH PASTOR:  Rev. R. B. Watts (1909 – 1911)
Rev. R. B. Watts, the eighth pastor, was not a fiery speaker—but he was a man of dreams and actions.  Seeing the building was out of date, he organized a remodeling program which changed the Church both inside and out.  The frame structure was changed to brick.  During the renovation period, services were held in a building known as Gower Hall.  Rev. Watts’ pastorate ended after two years, and he was unable  to complete the renovations.

9TH PASTOR:  Rev. Dr. George Goodwin (1911 – 1913)

At this time, the Church called Dr. George Goodwin of Augusta, Georgia.  He was an able leader, a Christian gentleman, and a great worker with the young people.  Having a vision of progress, he continued the work started by Rev. Watts.  In 1913, however, God saw fit to call him from labor to reward.

10TH PASTOR:  Rev. J. A. Carey (1913 – 1914)
The tenth pastor, Rev. J. A. Carey, was a great favorite with some of the young people.  However many of the older members, sensitive to the possibility of a potential problem,  thought it unwise to keep him.  Consequently, he was released after six months of service.

Months passed, and many preachers were invited to preach trial sermons.  Since the members could not agree on any one of them, a period of dissatisfaction and unrest followed. 

The Rev. James O. Allen, a man of confidence and son-in-law of Father Poole, having heard of the difficulty the members were having trying to find a suitable minister, attended one of their meetings and told them he knew a man who he thought would satisfy all.  “This man,” he said, “is a Christian gentleman and a good preacher.”  He added that the man, born in Dovesville, South Carolina, was serving a second term as pastor of the Royal Baptist Church in Anderson, South Carolina, where he had gone after an eight and one-half year pastorate at the Central Baptist Church in Charleston.  The minister he recommended was invited to preach a trial sermon, with which everyone was pleased.  This beloved friend, Rev. Charles F. Gandy, was called as pastor; and the outlook for Springfield Baptist Church began to brighten.


11TH PASTOR:  Rev. C. F. Gandy (1914 – 1956)

This dynamic speaker and humble servant preached his first sermon as pastor on the first Sunday in December, 1914.  However, it was March 1, 1915 before he was able to move his wife, the former Belle V. Brock, and their four small children to Greenville.  Four other children were born in Greenville.

When Rev. Gandy came to Springfield, he was faced with a Church mortgage of $1,900 which, through his careful planning, was soon liquidated.  This was just the beginning of the many accomplishments made during his successful administration.

Some of the many accomplishments made during Rev. Gandy’ pastorate are:

	· Heating plant installed

  

· New Pews purchased
 

· Church remodeled (1930)

 

· New parsonage built (1950)
 

· The first Sunday School bus purchased


	· Parsonage remodeled

· Pipe organ purchased and installed

· Auditorium renovated (1946)

· Chimes put on organ (1952)

· Lot across the street from Church purchased


For several years there was much discussion about an educational building being very much needed.  A few thousand dollars was raised and set aside as a building fund for this important project.

Inspired by this great leader, many clubs and other organizations were inaugurated:  

	· Junior, Intermediate, and Gospel Choirs 

· Flower Club 

· Do-What-I-Can Club

· Belle V. Gandy Missionary Society 

· Deaconess Board

· Brotherhood League


	· Builder’s Club

· Pastor’s Aid Club

· Mother’s Club

· Junior Missionary Society

· Junior Deacons

· Nurses Unit


The Builders Club represented a relatively new and innovative concept in black Baptist churches.  Organized in 1925, the Club was largely made up of a group of young, inspired Christian women.  Their “charge” was to assist and work with the Trustee Board.  Heretofore in the black Baptist Church, “trustee work” was viewed primarily, if not solely, as “man’s” work.  The openly-authorized use of women in this effort represented a major change.  

The Builders Club made significant contributions in support of the Church’s mission.  Some of their projects were the purchase of a large cross and chandeliers for the Sanctuary, purchase of bibles and hymnals for the Church pews, a Landscaping Drive and, more recently, a sizable start-up contribution to the elevator fund.  

As the years passed, and women were appointed to serve on the Trustee Board, the need for a club such as the Builders has diminished, and they are not currently as active as they once were.  Still, they are remembered for the willing and enthusiastic spirit with which they served Springfield; and Rev. Gandy is remembered as the man with the vision to use his people wisely.  

The coming of Rev. Gandy also brought recognition to Springfield through various other activities.  He served as moderator of the Enoree River Association for twenty years and as president of the South Carolina State Sunday School and BTU Convention for the same period.   Dr. Gandy’s work also meant much to our city, county, and state.  He was nationally known, especially among the Negro Baptists of our great country.  Both morally and spiritually, he was a great leader worthy of emulation.  His accomplishments were numerous; his friends countless.  It is believed that his success was due largely to his level-headedness and ability to preside under adverse circumstances.  He believed that the permanent progress of the race must be built on a foundation of Christian and industrial education.

In 1955 Dr. Gandy—like “Father Poole” before him—believed that the work was too heavy for him at his age and that a younger man was needed to carry on at Springfield.  Of his own free will and accord, he retired as pastor of Springfield after a long and successful administration of forty-two years.  Under his leadership many people were led to Christ.  

On December 16, 1956, the members held what was known as “Gandy Day,”  at which time Dr. Gandy was honored and presented a “Certificate of Pastor Emeritus.”  (Note:  Rev. Gandy remained the pastor of Rock Hill Baptist Church #1 and oversaw the construction of a new modern brick Church to replace the Rock Hill Church that was destroyed by fire.)  

In December 1966, after several years of declining health, Rev. Gandy passed away.  His combined service as Springfield pastor and pastor emeritus exceeded the half-century mark.  Echoes of four of his favorite songs—“Shine on Me,” “Hold to God’s Unchanging Hand,” “Lift Him Up,” and “There is Joy in That Land”—will ever ring out at Springfield. 

Mere words are inadequate to express our gratitude to Dr. Gandy for the interest and devotion he manifested and the great work done to help make Springfield one of the outstanding Churches in the South.  




12th PASTOR:  Rev. J. S. Hall, Sr. (1957 – 1963)
After Rev. Gandy’s resignation, many ministers were invited to preach trial sermons.  Finally, on Mother’s Day, 1957, Rev. J. S. Hall, Jr., son of  the Rev. and Mrs. J. S. Hall, Sr., of Marion, South Carolina, preached a trial sermon.  About two months later he was called as pastor.

When Rev. Hall, who had been pastor at both Raftin Creek  Baptist Church in Sumter County, and Mt. Rona Baptist Church in Florence County, came to Springfield, he was only twenty-five years old.  His wife, the former Elizabeth Coaxum, of Walterboro, South Carolina, and two small daughters moved to Greenville with him.  Shortly afterwards,  a son, James Anthony, was added to the family.

On the third Sunday in July, 1957, Rev. Hall preached his first sermon as pastor of Springfield.  His text was taken from 1 Corinthians 2:2:  “For I determine not to know anything among you, save Jesus Christ, and Him crucified.”   He cherished the old hymns his mother used to sing when he was a boy.  He influenced many to know Christ.  During his six-year pastorate, approximately four hundred members were added to the Church roll. 

He was responsible for organization of the following groups:  The Sunshine Choir, The Wisteria Club, and the Young Women’s Association (YWA).  He also reorganized the Brotherhood League.  These organizations added much to the spiritual and cultural values of the Church.  

Rev. Hall was intensely interested in the youth program and believed that young people should be highly trained so they will be prepared to meet the needs of a complex society.

Like Rev. Gandy, Rev. Hall saw the need for expansion and lost no time in joining forces with the members to help them realize their dream of an educational building.  Since everyone was eager for this addition, he took the necessary steps to organize the right committees that went to work with their new undershepherd.  Plans were drawn up and approved.

Ground-breaking ceremonies were held on Sunday, August 10, 1958.  The estimated cost of the building, which was dedicated April 9, 1959, was $65,000.  Included in it were twenty-four Sunday School classrooms, several conference rooms, a choir room, a library, an assembly room, a Church office, and a pastor’s study.  

The Springfield Daycare program first opened in the 1950s under the direction of Mrs. Helen Sayles.  Our present Chairman of the Trustee Ministry, Jerome Thompson, was one of the first children in the day care. 

After serving Springfield for six years, Rev. Hall resigned in 1963 to accept the pastorate of  Morris Chapel Baptist Church, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.  We are ever grateful to him for his enthusiastic and capable leadership of Springfield.  Moreover, we cannot forget Mrs. Hall whose patience and understanding proved an asset in his endeavors.

13th PASTOR:  Rev. David C. Francis (1963 – 1973)
The deacons, believing that the church should not be  without a undershepherd for a long period, immediately got in touch with the Rev. David C. Francis.  Some of them had heard him preach; and he was enthusiastically recommended by people who knew him for his humility, leadership ability, and high moral and spiritual principles.  Upon request, Rev. Francis, of Norway, South Carolina, delivered a sermon to a large congregation at Springfield on the second Sunday in June, 1963.  The members were so impressed by his forceful message that they immediately and unanimously elected him pastor in a meeting after the morning service.

On August 28, 1963—after the congregation of Bethlehem Baptist Church in Newberry,  South Carolina, where he had pastored for five years, reluctantly accepted his resignation—Rev. Francis, his wife, the former Frances Grant, and their three sons moved to Greenville.

As the thirteenth pastor of Springfield, Rev. Francis preached his initial sermon on the first Sunday in August 1963.  His preaching and singing touched the hearts of many people in and around Greenville.  One of his favorite songs was “If I Can Help Somebody.”

Faced, as was Rev. Gandy, with a church mortgage, Rev. Francis went to work to liquidate the debt as soon as possible so he could undertake new projects.  With the cooperation of the church at large, the debt of $18,000 was paid and the mortgage was burned in a ceremony on August 30, 1964, just twelve months after Rev. Francis had become leader.  Among other projects he completed are the following:

	· Church cleaned and painted
 

· Pews cleaned and shellacked
 

· Outside bulletin board bricked  

· New Pulpit set purchased 

· Kitchen renovated

	· New Carpet purchases

· New Sunday School Bus purchased

· Front inside doors changed to glass paneled doors

· Air conditioning unit installed

· 600 hymnals purchased


Rev. Francis was active in many areas.  He was (1) the first Negro president of the Greenville Ministerial Association, (2) representative of the National Baptist Convention to the assembly of the National Council of Churches, and (3)  president of the local branch of the NAACP.  Although he received these personal honors, he claimed no personal credit, opting instead to give the glory and honor to God and the Springfield Baptist Church.

Rev. Francis was a hard worker and a man who truly loved his Church.  He was attending a Foreign Mission Board meeting is Jamaica in January, 1972, when suddenly the city of Greenville, SC and surrounding areas were shocked by the sudden news that came over radio, television, and telephone:  “SPRINGFIELD BAPTIST CHURCH IS BURNING DOWN.”  This happened on Tuesday night, January 25, 1972.  This was one of the darkest times in the life of  Springfield.  The Church, the Education Building, the parsonage, and everything the Church had there was destroyed by fire. 

Along with the outpouring expressions of compassion and empathy which the Church members received came numerous offers of housing facilities.  Ultimately, the membership accepted the offer from the Greenville County School Board.  Springfield Church worship services were held at the Beck Middle School on McAlister Road.  The Church office, kindergarten, and nursery, were housed in the old Hayne School Building on Toy Street. Church meetings were also conducted at the Hayne School.  

For a while things moved on in normal order at Springfield.  Rev. Francis appointed many committees to work and make plans for the new Church.  He always looked forward to building a new Springfield.  However, this was not to be.  Rev. Francis, having been ill for several months, was called home to glory in September 1973.  His death brought deep sorrow to the Church and to the community.  A thirty-day mourning period was proclaimed.

After the thirty-day mourning period, many ministers were invited to preach trial sermons.  Months passed and no pastor was called.  All the while, the Church officers and members continued to work and plan for the rebuilding of Springfield.

Interim PASTOR:  Rev. Daniel C. Butler
During the illness of Rev. Francis, Rev. Daniel C. Butler served as “interim” pastor.  He was a long-time Springfield member, a Sunday School teacher, and trustee.  He was a native of Langley/Warrenville, South Carolina, and his parents were Henry Butler and Laura Scott Butler.  He was married to Ruby Louise Brown.  They had one daughter, LaConyea.  Professionally, he taught at  Sterling High School and was a teacher, coach, and principal at Taylors Rosenwald School and Lincoln High School.  Rev. Butler had an easy-going attitude and willingness to help.  This, coupled with his love and concern for others, no doubt, served the people well during his tenure as pastor.  He served as interim pastor until August 1974. 

14th PASTOR:  Rev. Dr. John H. Corbitt (1974 – Present)


Finally on August 13, 1974—almost  one year after the death of Rev. Francis—the Rev. John H. Corbitt, a native of Salley, South Carolina, was elected the fourteenth pastor of Springfield Baptist Church.  He had been pastor of the 
Mount Pleasant Baptist Church, Little Rock, Arkansas for seven years.

 Groundbreaking ceremonies, which had already been set by the Church for Sunday, August 18, 1974, were carried out on that date, as planned, with the new pastor and his family—wife, the former Miss Betty Stacks, and two sons, Bruce and Terry— in attendance.

After 26 months of waiting and watching as the new Springfield was being built, a day of jubilation was realized as the congregation worshipped in the new sanctuary on October 17, 1976.  The new edifice, a modernistic structure with stained glass windows and cathedral ceiling, was the fruition of a dream and a commitment to overcome all obstacles of the past and look toward a bright future.

The Church sanctuary seats 1,000 and combines brick walls and wooden exposed beams which symbolize the old and the new.  The pulpit and choir loft are situated to provide worshippers full view from any angle of the sanctuary.  A conference room and lobby complete the upper level.

The lower level houses the Child Development Center, the Church offices, Sunday School rooms, library, music room and kitchen.  There is also a lower level auditorium which doubles as a fellowship hall and a large meeting room.  A gallery of former pastors’ portraits is displayed in one hallway.   
One of the first initiatives of Dr. Corbitt’s was to implement a young adult contemporary gospel choir.  The “new” choir, the Voices of Faith, had its debut on the third Sunday in November 1974, during morning worship service at the Beck Middle School.  Today that Choir still sings on third Sundays. 

In addition to the Voices of Faith Choir, Dr. Corbitt also implemented the following programs and activities:  an annual Youth Day, a Youth Retreat, a Retiree’s Fellowship, a Single’s Ministry, the Deaf Ministry, and the “BEACON”, which is a monthly Church newsletter.  In addition, the Young Women’s Association (YWA), the Brotherhood, the Male Chorus, and the Annual Picnic have been reactivated. 

A radio ministry was initiated in December 1977.  Sunday services were aired on Radio Station WHYZ the following Sunday afternoons to thousands of homes in a three state radius—Northern Georgia, Western North Carolina, and the Piedmont Region of South Carolina.  This outreach effort carried the Word of God to those who, for various reasons, could not come to Church; and it carried Springfield to neighboring cities.  The radio ministry continues today with weekly services aired each Saturday morning at 9:00 a.m. on WPJM radio.

A television ministry, which was telecast live each fifth (5th) Sunday at 11:00 a.m. on station WFBC, was first aired on May 31, 1981.  At its inception, it was the first of its kind within the black community. 

In the 1980s on Pastor Corbitt’s nomination, the Church conference elected  three women—Miss Bernice Barton, Mrs. Dorothy Dyches, and Miss. Jeanne Lynhardt—to the Trustee Board.  This was the first appointment of women trustees in the history of Springfield.  Miss Barton later became Chairman of the Board, and served in this capacity from 1994 to 1998.  Today there are nine women in the Trustee Ministry. 

Springfield has been sending youth and adult delegates to the National Baptist Congress since 1982.  Delegates are also sent to State Conventions and to National and State Congresses of Christian Education.  Almost all youth, aged 13 and older, who have been active in the church have attended one of more the Congresses over the years.  The inspirational and biblical training they receive is designed to enhance their Christian development and help improve their academic and leadership skills.   Dr. Corbitt served as President of the South Carolina State Baptist Congress of Christian Education from 1986 to 1990.

The National Baptist Congress is the educational arm of the National Baptist Convention, USA, Inc., which currently has 8.5 million members.  Springfield is active in the National Baptist Convention and contributes financially to its Foreign Missions Programs.

Dr. Corbitt served as Dean of the Congress of Christian Education for 15 years—from 1984 to 1999.  He also represented the Springfield Baptist Church on several missions trips.  In 1980 he was one of 18 pastors sent on a preaching mission to Liberia, Republic of South Africa, Kenya, Malawi, and Swaziland.  In 1988 he was one of 25 Baptist leaders who went to Soviet Union (now Russia) in  recognition of the anniversary of 1,000 years of Christianity in Russia.

In addition, Pastor Corbitt and a group of Springfield members were a part of the following mission trips:  

	1979
	-
	Israel, Jordan, & Athens, Greece

	1983
	-
	Israel, Jordan, Egypt, Austria

	1984
	-
	Baptist World Youth Congress in Buenos Aires, Argentina

	1988
	-
	Baptist World Youth Congress in Glasgow, Scotland with side trips to England and France

	1990
	-
	World Baptist Alliance (educational) in Seoul, Korea with side trips to China and Hong Kong

	1993
	-
	Baptist World Youth Congress in Harare, Zimbabwe

	1995
	-
	Baptist World Alliance in Buenos Aires, Argentina with side trips to Rio de Janeiro, Brazil & Santiago, Chile


The long-standing Springfield Scholarship Ministry has provided financial assistance to college students for many  years.  Each year they sponsor a musical program as a Scholarship fundraiser.  The program, which is both spiritual and cultural, usually features talent of Springfield members. 

With Pastor Corbitt’s approval, several member-initiated programs have been implemented since the beginning of 2000.  Some are as follows.  A Springfield Angel Tree Ministry—which helps provide Christmas gifts to children of incarcerated men and women— was started in 2000.  The recreation ministry was reorganized in 2002, with particular emphasis on reaching the youth by involving them in organized local basketball tournaments. This year one of our teams finished with honors, bringing home to Springfield a trophy—our first! .  An adult Praise Team—a group of singers who lead devotional service for congregants prior to the start of regular worship service—was begun in 2003.  A Praise Dance ministry involving young girls in the Church was started in 2004, and reorganized by Pastor Corbitt in 2006.  Presently, this ministry involves pre-teens, up to age 11.  

Under Pastor Corbitt, outstanding speakers have been brought to Springfield.  They include the Ambassador to the United States from Ghana, Samuel E. Quam, who was the Men’s Day Speaker in 1975; Special Assistant to the President of the United States, John Calhoun, Men’s Day speaker in 1976; The Honorable Matthew J. Perry, Judge of the US Court of Military Appeals, who was Men-Women’s Day speaker in 1977; Dr. Samuel L. Gandy, Professor of Theology at Howard University School of Religion, who was Church Anniversary speaker in 1981; Lieutenant Governor Mike Daniels, Spring Rally speaker in 1985; Reverend Jesse L. Jackson, Director of PUSH, who was the Men-Women’s Day speaker in 1981; and Congresswoman “Liz” Patterson, Spring Rally speaker 1987.

Springfield has been involved in both religious and civic sectors.  We hosted the State Baptist Convention four times:  1949, 1956, 1960, and most recently in 1982.  We were also host to the Women’s Baptist Convention in 1899, 1921, 1987, and 2005.  The Baptist State Ushers Convention was held at Springfield in 1987.  The South Carolina Baptist Congress of Christian Education was held at Springfield in July 1989.  The Baptist State Brotherhood held its one-day session here in 1994.  The Greenville Branch of the NAACP and the Greenville Urban League were both organized at Springfield. 

In 2009 the Springfield Brotherhood was recognized by the Enoree River Association’s Brotherhood for outstanding leadership and service to the community, citing in part their annual 100 Men in Black program.  

During the last several years Springfield has extended its Christian fellowship with other denominations.  In line with this, annual joint services were been held with the Westminster Presbyterian Church for several years. 

Springfield still has a continuing friendship and association with the First Baptist Greenville Church.  Dr. Jeffrey Rogers, Pastor of First Baptist and Dr. Corbitt plan and hold joint worship services for the two churches annually.  Each church serves as host church every other year.  We do not want to forget—and we want our children to know—about the special relationship that has existed between these two Churches throughout the history of Springfield and even before. 
Situated on the corner of McBee and McDaniel Avenues, the 142-year Springfield Baptist Church symbolizes the faith and hope of its current membership.  It harbors the legacy of Christian perseverance of our forefathers, and the hope of future generations as a leader and innovator for the cause of Christ.

During the year 2007,  Springfield was blessed with a special $140,000 grant that will enchance our Missions and Outreach Ministries.

God has guided the destiny of our great Church.  We are thankful to Him for all the wonders He has wrought.  In retrospect, we are humbled by the trials, endurance, and fortitude of former Springfield members; and we are grateful for their many successes.  We embrace the present with a sense of indebtedness to them and to all who walked with them.  We are ever mindful that the same God who protected and guided them now watches over us.  We look to the future with hope, praying for continued strength and guidance as we go – “Onward, Ever Onward.”  Our prayer has been well expressed by James Weldon Johnson:

“God of our weary years, God of our silent tears,

Thou who has brought us thus far on the way;

Thou who hast by thy might Led us into the light,

Keep us forever in the path, we pray…”


Historians:  Mattie P. Thomas, Dorothy B. Mims, Velma Richardarson
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